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Introduction 

The city of Saint Paul, Minnesota ("City" or "recipient") is a Community Development 
Block Grant ("CDBG") entitlement community and a HOME program participating 
jurisdiction. As such, it is a recipient of financial assistance from the U. S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUDII or the "Department"). 
Certain projects carried out by the City utilizing HUD funds constitute "Section 3 
covered projects" as defined in 24 CFR 135.3.1 Between 2006 and 2008, the City 
received HUD funds in the following amounts: 

20062 CDBG $8,211,748 HOME $2,291,390 

20073 CDBG $8,225,675 HOME $2,277,962 

20084 CDBG $7,941,344 ·HOME $2,202,555 

On June 23, 2008, Fredrick Newell filed a complaint alleging that the Saint Paul 
Housing and Redevelopment Authority ("Saint Paul HRA"), an agency of the City, 
failed or refused to comply with the requirements of Section 3. On June 24, 2008, 
Mr. Frederick Newell filed a second complaint alleging that the City failed or refused 
to comply with the statutory and regulatory requirement of Section 3 of the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1968-12 U.S.c. 1701u and 24 CFR § 135. Given 
the functional relationship between the HRA and the City, the two complaints were 
consolidated for the purposes of investigation. 

During the course of the investigation, HUD staff discovered that the City had not 
submitted annual reports (HUD Form 60002) documenting Section 3 activities as 
required by 24 CFR 135.905 for the last several years. In light ofSaint Paul's failure 
to submit the annual reports as required, HUD chose to incorporate the investigation 
of Mr. Newell's complaints into a ~eneral review of the City's compliance with the 
contracting provisions of Section 3. 

lSection 3 applies to the following HUD assistance received by the City...community development assistance that is used for the 
following projects (i) housing rehabilitation (ii)housing construCtion and (iii) other public construction. The requirements apply to 
recipients of community development assistance for a Section 3 covered project(s) for which the amount of the assistance exceeds 
$200,000. The reqUirements apply to contractors and sub contractors performing work on Section 3 covered project(s) for which 
the amount of the assistance exceeds $200,000; and the contract or sub contract exceeds $100,000. 

2 See http://www.hud.gov/offlces/cpd/about/budgetjbudget06 

3 See http://www.hud.gov/offlces/cpd/about/budget/budget07 

4 See http://www.hud.gov/offlces/cpd/about/budget/budget08 

5 Each recipient that receives directly from HUD financial assistance that is subject to the requirements of this part shall submit to 
the Assistant Secretary an annual report in such form and with and with such information as the Assistant Secretary may request, 
for the purposes of determining the effectiveness of Section 3. 

6 See 24 CFR 135.74 (t). 
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During the week of May 19, 2009, HUD conducted a limited review of the City's 
compliance with Section 3, focusing on contracting opportunities and obligations. 
Data and documents were examined in advance of the on-site review. Key staff were 
interviewed and selected construction project files were reviewed on-site. 

In addition, materials produced pursuant to a federal lawsuit? filed by Mr. Newell 
against the City were also reviewed. In his lawsuit, Mr. Newell alleged the City failed 
to comply with Section 3 in numerous ways including (1) failure to award a sufficient 
percentage of contracts to Section 3 business concerns; (2) failure to exercise 
oversight over contractors hired with Section 3 funds to assure that the contractors 
provide training, employment, and contracting opportunities to Section 3 persons 
and business concerns; (3) failure to meet Section 3's reporting requirements; (4) 
failure to seek out and identify Section 3 business concerns about contracting 
opportunities; and, (5) failure to file form HUD-60002. These are essentially the 
same allegations contained in Mr. Newell's HUD complaint. The lawsuit was 
ultimately dismissed on summary judgment because the court determined that 
Section 3 does not provide a right of private action. 

The Department's review revealed a' number of deficiencies related to the City's 
compliance with Section 3. Specifically, the City is not in compliance with the 
statutory and regulatory requirements of Section 3. There is no written or unwritten 
Section 3 plan maintained. The City cannot document compliance with the greatest 
extent feasible requirement of Section 3 by meeting the numerical goals set forth in 
the regulations. There are no procedures in place to: 1) notify Section 3 residents 
about training and employment opportunities generated by Section 3 covered 
assistance and/or Section 3 business concerns about contracting opportunities; 2) 
notify potential ,contractors about the Section 3 requirements and ensure their 
compliance and their subcontractors' compliance with Section 3 requirements; 3) 
incorporate the Section 3 clause in all solicitations and contracts; 4) facilitate the 
training and employment of Section 3 residents and the award of contracts to 
Section 3 business concerns; 5) document the actions taken to comply with the 
Section 3 requirements, the results of the actions and impediments, if any; and 6) 
refrain from entering into agreements with contractors that have violated the 
requirements of Section 38• Further, the City has not submitted the HUD form 60002 
annually as evidence of its efforts to comply with Section 3, as stipulated at 24 CFR § 
135.90. On August 25,2009, HUD issued a Letter of Finding of Noncompliance (LOF) 

7 Nails Construction Company et al v. The City of Saint Paul. 2007 WL 423187 (D.Minn.) 

8 See 24 CFR 135.32 
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against the Citl for failing to ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 3 
in its own operations and those of its covered contractors attached as Appendix A. 

The City agrees to enter into this Voluntary Compliance Agreement in order to 
address the issues raised in HUD's August 25, 2009, Letter of Findings and to comply 
with its responsibilities under Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act 
of 1968. This Voluntary Compliance Agreement will and hereby does fully and finally 
resolve Mr. Newell's pending Section 3 administrative complaints against the City and 
the St. Paul HRA without any further action. This Voluntary Compliance Agreement 
does not release the City from any claims, damages, penalties, issues, assessments, 
disputes or demands arising under the False Claims Act, 31 U. S. C. sections 3729 to 
37331 or any other statutory, administrative, regulatory or common law claims. 
Additionally, this Voluntary Compliance Agreement and any payments made in 
connection with this Voluntary Compliance Agreement cannot be used to offset or 
reduce any claims, damagesl penalties, assessments, or demands ariSing under the 
False Claims Act or any other statutory, administrative, regulatory or common law 
claims. 

Definitions 

The following definitions will be used in the interpretation and implementation of the 
terms of this Agreement. 

Applicant means any entity which makes an application for Section 3 covered 
assistance, and includes but is not limited to any State, units of local governmentl 

public housing agency, Indian housing authority, Indian tribe or other public body, 
public of private nonprofit organization, private agency or institution, mortgage 
developer, limited dividend sponsor, builder, property manager, community housing 
development corporation, resident management corporation, resident council or 
cooperative association. 

Business concern means a business entity formed in accordance with State laws and 
which is licensed to engage in the type of business activity for which it was formed. 

Contractor means any entity which contracts to perform work generated by the 
expenditure of Section 3 covered assistance, or for work in connection with a Section 
3 covered project. 

Employment opportunities generated by Section 3 covered assistance means all 
employment opportunities generated by the expenditure of Section 3 covered public 
and Indian housing assistance (i.e., operating assistance, development assistance 
and modernization assistance, as described in § 135.3(a)(1». With respect to Section 
3 covered housing and community development assistance, this term means all 
employment opportunities arising in connectiqn with Section 3 covered projects (as 

9 The original compliance review reviewed the City and the Housing and Redevelopment AuthOrity. Since the City is the direct 
reCipient of Section 3 covered assistance, it bears the ultimate responsibility for ensuring Section 3 compliance in their own 

'- operations/departments and those of their contractors/subcontractors. (see 24 CFR § 135.32) 
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described in § 135.3(a)(2)), including management and administrative jobs 
connected with the Section 3 covered project. Management and administrative jobs 
include architectural, engineering or related professional services required to prepare 
plans, drawings, specifications, or work write-ups; and jobs directly related to,.

administrative support of these activities, e.g., construction manager, relocation 
specialist, payroll clerk, etc. 

Housing and community development assistance means any financial assistance 
provided or otherwise made available through a HUD housing or community 
development program through any grant, loan, loan guarantee, cooperative 
agreement, or contract, and includes community development funds in the form of 
community development block grants, and loans guaranteed under section 108 of 
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended. Housing and 
community development assistance does not include financial assistance provided 
through a contract of insurance or guaranty. . 

Low-income person. See the definition of "Section 3 resident" in this section. 

Metropolitan area means a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), as established by the 
Office of Management and Budget. 

Neighborhood area means for HUD community development programs, the 
definition, if provided, in the regulations for the applicable community development 
program, or the definition for this term in 24 CFR 570.204(c)(1). 

New hires mean full-time employees for permanent, temporary or seasonal 
employment opportunities. 

Other HUD programs means HUD programs, other than HUD public and Indian 
housing programs, that provide housing and community development assistance for 
"Section 3 covered projects," as defined in this section. 

Public housing resident has the meaning given this term in 24 CFR § 963. 

Recipient means any entity which receives Section 3 covered assistance, directly 
from HUD or from another recipient and includes, but is not limited to, any State, 
unit of local government, PHA, IHA, Indian tribe, or other public body, public or 
private nonprofit organization, private agency or institution, mortgagor, developer, 
limited dividend sponsor, builder, property manager, community housing 
development organization, resident management corporation, resident council, or 
cooperative association. Recipient also includes any successor, assignee or transferee 
of any such entity, but does not include any ultimate beneficiary under the HUD 
program to which Section 3 applies and does not include contractors. 

Page 6 February 2, 2010 



Section 3 means Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 

as amended (12 U.S.C. 1701u). 


Section 3 business concern means a business concern, as defined in this section (1) 
That is 51 percent or more owned by Section 3 residents; or (2) Whose permanent, 
full-time employees include persons, at least 30 percent of whom are currently 
Section 3 residents, or within three years of the date of first employment with the 
business concern were Section 3 residents; or (3) That provides evidence of a 
commitment to subcontract in excess of 25 percent of the dollar award of all 
subcontracts to be awarded to business concerns that meet the qualifications set 
forth in paragraphs (1) or (2) in this definition of "Section 3 business concern." 

Section 3 clause means the contract provisions set forth in 24 CFR § 135.3810. 

Section 3 covered assistance means assistance provided under any HUD housing or 
community development program that is expended for work arising in connection 
with: (i) Housing rehabilitation (including reduction and abatement of lead-based 
paint hazards, but excluding routine maintenance, repair and replacement); (ii) 
Housing construction; or (iii) Other public construction project (which includes other 
buildings or improvements, regardless of ownership). 

Section 3 covered contract means a contract or subcontract (including a professional 
service contract) awarded by a recipient or contractor for work generated by the 
expenditure of Section 3 covered aSSistance, or for work arising in connection with a 
Section 3 covered project. "Section 3 covered contracts" also do not include 
contracts for the purchase of supplies and materials. However, whenever a contract 
for materials includes the installation of the materials, the contract constitutes a 
Section 3 covered contract. For example, a contract for the purchase and installation 
of a furnace would be a Section 3 covered contract because the contract is for work 
(i.e., the installation of the furnace) and thus is covered by Section 3. 

Section 3 covered project means the construction, reconstruction, conversion 
or rehabilitation of housing (including reduction and abatement of lead-based paint 
hazards), other public construction which includes buildings or improvements 
(regardless of ownership) assisted with housing or community development 
assistance. 

Section 3 joint venture means an association of business concerns, one of 
which qualifies as a Section 3 business concern, formed by written joint venture 
agreement to engage in and carry out a specific business venture for which purpose 
the business concerns combine their efforts, resources, and skills for joint profitl but 
not necessarily on a continuing or permanent basis for conducting business 
generallYI and for which the Section 3 business concern: (i) Is responsible for a 

10 See Appendix 2 
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clearly defined portion of the work to be performed and holds management 
responsibilities in the joint venture; and (ij) Performs at least 25 percent of the work 
and is contractually entitled to compensation proportionate to its work, 

Section 3 resident means (1) A public housing resident; or (2) An individual who 
resides in the metropolitan area or nonmetropolitan county in which the Section 3 
covered assistance is expended, and who is: (i) A low-income person, as this term .is 
defined in Section 3(b)(2) of the 1937 Act (42 U,S.c. 1437a(b)(2)). Section 3(b)(2) 
of the 1937 Act defines this term to mean families (including single persons) whose 
incomes do not exceed 80 percent of the median income for the area, as determined 
by the Secretary, with adjustments for smaller and larger families, except that the 
Secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 80 percent of the 
median for the area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such variations are 
necessary because of prevailing levels of construction costs or unusually high or low
income families; or (ii) A vel}' low-income person, as this term is defined in Section 
3(b)(2) of the 1937 Act (42 U.S.C. 1437a(b)(2)). Section 3(b)(2) of the 1937 Act (42 
U.S.C. 1437a(b)(2)) defines this term to mean families (including single persons) 
whose incomes do not exceed 50 percent of the median family income for the area, 
as determined by the Secretary with adjustments for smaller and larger families, 
except that the Secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 50 
percent of the median for the area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such 
variations are necessary because of unusually high or low family incomes. (3) A 
person seeking the training and employment preference provided by Section 3 bears 
the responsibility of providing evidence (if requested) that the person is eligible for 
the preference. 

Service area means the geographical area in which the persons benefitting from the 
Section 3 covered project reside. The service area shall not extend beyond the unit 
of general local government in which the Section 3 covered assistance is expended. 

Subcontractor means any entity (other than a person who is an employee of the 
contractor) which has a contract with a contractor to undertake a portion of the 
contractors obligation for the performance of work generated by the expenditure of 
Section 3 covered aSSistance, or arising in connection with a Section 3 covered 
project. 

Vel}' low-income person see the definition of "Section 3 resident" in this section. 

Terms ofAgreement 

This Voluntary Compliance Agreement ("Agreement" or "VCA'') shall govern for a 
period of four (4) years from the effective date of the Agreement. 
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Effective Date 

This Agreement shall become effective on the date that it is executed by the Assistant 
Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity or his designee. 

General Provisions 

a) This Agreement applies to the following HUD assistance received by the 
City...community development assistance that is used for the following projects 
(i) housing rehabilitation (ii)housing construction and (iii) other public 

. construction. 	 . The requirements apply to recipients of community 
development assistance for a Section 3 covered project(s) for which the 
amount of the assistance exceeds $200,000. The requirements apply to 
contractors and sub contractors performing work on Section 3 covered 
project(s) for which the amount of the assistance exceeds $200,000; and the 
contract or sub contract exceeds $100,000. Community development 
assistance includes, but is not limited to Community Development Block Grant 
funds (CDBG), HOME funds, Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) funds, 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) funds, and Housing for Persons with 
AIDS (HOPWA) funds. 

b) This Agreement does not increase or diminish the ability of any person or class 
of persons to exercise their rights under Section 3. Individuals or classes of 
persons who may have rights under the aforementioned statute or regulation 
are not parties or third party beneficiaries of this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed as creating any right in a third party to enforce 
any provision of this Agreement or to assert any claim against the City or HUD. 

c) This Agreement is a public document. A copy of this Agreement shall be made 
available to any person for his/her review in accordance with HUD's and the 
City's obligations under the Freedom of Information Act or any other law. 

d) To the extent that any prior or contemporaneous HUD guidance (written or 
oral) in the form of letters, opinions or similar guidance regarding the City's 
obligations, responsibilities, or responsibilities under Section 3 of the Housing 
and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, conflicts with this 
Agreement, this Agreement is the controlling document from the effective date 
of the Agreement. 

e) The City shall refrain from retaliating against any person who has: 1) exercised 
or will exercise his/her legal rights under Section 3; 2) participated in or will 
participate in any manner with a Section 3 compliance review; or 3) 
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participated in any manner in protecting the rights of Section 3 residents or 
businesses. 

f) 	HUD will monitor the City's implementation of and compliance with the terms 
of this Agreement. HUD may conduct on-site monitoring reviews of the City's 
compliance with the provisions of this Agreement. The City will grant HUD 
access to its premises, records and personnel for the reviews. 

g) This Agreement is a compromise of disputes, and nothing herein shall be 
deemed or construed to be an admission or concession of any liability 
whatever on the part of the City. 

Specific Provisions 

In addition to all regulatory reqUirements, the City shall: 

a) Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement: 

i. 	 Hire or appoint appropriate personnel to oversee compliance with the 
provisions of the Agreement and forward that person's name(s) as well as a 
copy of the position description(s) to HUD. 

ii. 	 Develop a system to ensure that all covered contracts include the Section 3 
clause found at 24 CFR § 135.38. 

iii. 	 Obligate a total of $650,000 to be placed into a Section 3 Implementation 
Fund for years one (1) and two (2) of this Agreement to fund the various 
Section 3 initiatives herein detailed. See sections (b) and (c), below. 

The penalties paid by developers, contractors, subcontractors and sub
recipients under the "Penalties" section, (d)(v)(1)(b) of this section, below, for 
failure to achieve the Section 3 numerical contracting and employment goals, 
will be placed into this Fund for each year that the Agreement is in effect. In 
addition, for years three (3) and four (4) of this Agreement, City staff will 
annually submit a request to the City Council for funding of the Section 3 
Implementation Fund, to fund the various Section 3 initiatives herein detailed, 
in an amount equal to the diirerence between $175,000 and the penalties 
collected under section (d)(v)(1)(b) of this Section, below. In the event that 
in years three (3) and four (4) of this Agreement, the City does not allocate 
sufficient funds to bring the total deposit to the Section 3 Implementation 
Fund to $175,000, the Agreement will be suspended to allow HUD to 
conduct a Section 3 compliance review to determine, in particular but not 
limited to, whether the City is meeting the "safe harbor" numerical 
requirements. In the event that the compliance review determines that the 
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City is meeting the "safe harbor" numerical requirements and is otherwise 
complying with Section 3, the Agreement will terminate; however, the City 
will continue to make semi-annual reports to HUD until the Agreement has 
expired. However, in the event that the compliance review determines that 
the City is not meeting the "safe harbor" numerical requirements, and/or 
the City is not complying with Section 3 to the greatest extent feasible, 
and/or is not otherwise complying with Section 3, HUD will find the City in 
noncompliance and the procedures and remedies contained in the section 
of this Agreement entitled "Effect of Noncompliance with this Agreement" 
will apply. Provided, however, HUD will give the City a reasonable 
opportunity to meet the "safe harbor" numerical requirements before 
implementing the procedures and remedies contained in the section of this 
Agreement entitled "Effect of Noncompliance with this Agreement." 

b) Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this Agreement, the City will 
develop and forward to HUD for review and approval, a written Section 3 Plan 
covering Section 3 contracting, employment and training opportunities which 
will: 

i. 	 Establish policies, procedures and practices to ensure that projects fully or 
partially funded with Section 3 covered financial assistance comply with 
regulatory requirements 24 CFR § 135. 

ii. 	 Establish a mechanism to ensure to the maximum extent feasible that a 
minimum of 10% of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered 
contracts for building trades work ariSing in connection with housing 
rehabilitation, housing construction, and other public construction be 
awarded to Section 3 business concerns. 

iii. 	 Establish a mechanism to ensure to the maximum extent feasible that at 
least 3% of the total dollar amount of all other Section 3 covered contracts 
be awarded to Section 3 bUSiness concerns. 

iv. 	 Require contractors to develop a Section 3 plan detailing how they will 
comply with the requirements of Section 3. The plan should include but not 
be limited to specific information about the contractor's current workforce, 
plans for hiring additional employees, antiCipated subcontracting needs, 
and strategies for targeting Section 3 residents and business concerns for 
new economic opportunities. 

v. Establish a process by which the City will certify Section 3 residents and 
business concerns. 

Page 11 	 February 2, 2010 



vi. 	 Maintain a separate list of certified Section 3 business concerns. 

vii. 	 Provide a list of Section 3 businesses to all sub-recipients, developers and 
successful bidders in an effort to facilitate the award of contracts and 
subcontracts to Section 3 business concerns. 

viii. 	 Provide annual Section 3 training events for area contractors, sub
contractors, grantees, sub-recipients and residents. 

c) 	 The City agrees to provide its services to Section 3 residents and Section 3 
business concerns. The City agrees to submit to HUD for review and approval 
a plan to enhance the capability and technical capacity of Section 3 residents 
and business concerns. The Plan will fund activities such as: 

i. 	 Developing a program which will evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of 
potential and/or new Section 3 business owners and will provide specific 
services that will develop and improve their potential for success. 

ii. 	 Providing training in business consultation, start-up, technical assistance for 
business expansion and retention, outreach and advertising services. 

iii. 	 Providing training in the City's project development process. 

iv. 	 Providing training on insurance and bonding requirements. 

v. 	 Helping establish relationships between the business and banking 
community. 

vi. 	 Providing construction job preparation training both in the classroom and in 
the field. 

vii. 	 Providing information on tax credits available to contractors for employing 
Section 3 residents. 

viii. 	 Funding and making available a scholarship fund to be used by Section 3 
residents to be used as financial assistance for the payment of items such 
as, union initiation fees, dues, tools, equipment and work clothing. 

ix. 	 Funding and making available a no-interest revolving loan fund for Section 
3 business concerns, including start-up Section 3 business concerns. 
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d) Within 180 days of the effective date of this Agreement, the City will revise its 
existing contract and procurement policies, practices and procedures as 
follows: 

i. Provide notice on the City's web site and the Contract Analysis Services 
bulletin board, and electronic notice, or written notice where the Section 3 
business concern prefers written notice, to all City-certified Section 3 
business concerns of upcoming contracting opportunities. This notice shall 
be in sufficient time to allow the Section 3 business concerns to respond to 
the bid invitations or request for proposals. 

ii. For publicly-owned Section 3 covered projects constructed by the City, 
arrange solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities/ 
specifications/ and delivery schedules in ways to facilitate the participation 
of Section 3 business concerns. 

iii. 	 For privately-owned Section 3 covered projects not constructed by the City/ 
require the developer to arrange solicitations/ times for the presentation of 
bids/ quantities, specifications/ and delivery schedules in ways to facilitate 
the participation of Section 3 business concerns. 

iv. 	 For publicly-owned Section 3 covered projects constructed by the ·City/ 
where appropriate/ break out contract work items into economically feasible 
units to facilitate participation by Section 3 business concerns. 

v. 	 For privately-owned Section 3 covered projects not constructed by the City/ 
require the developer, where appropriate/ to break out contract work items 
into economically feasible units to facilitate participation by Section 3 
business concerns. 

(1) Where 	a contractor/ subcontractor/ developer or sub-recipient has not 
reached the goal that at least 10% of the total dollar amount of all Section 
3 covered subcontracts for building trades work arising in connection with 
housing rehabilitation/ housing construction, or other public construction 
to Section 3 business concerns and at least 3% of the total dollar amount 
of all other Section 3 covered contracts are provided to Section 3 business 
concerns, the City, contractor, developer and/or sub-recipient shall be 
required to make additional efforts. Those additional actions may include 
but shall not be limited to: 

(a) Within 	 120 days the City will devise and implement Section 3 
Procurement Preferences consistent with the Appendix III to 24 CFR 
135, Examples of Procurement that Provides for Preference for Section 
3 Business Concerns and require the contractor, subcontractor/ 
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developer and sub-recipient to comply with the same. The 
Preferences will be devised so as to maximize the utilization of Section 
3 sub-contractors without economically disadvantaging general 
contractors or developers. 

(b) Require the contractor, sub-contractor, developer or sub-recipient to 
provide other economic opportunities to Section 3 residents and 
businesses pursuant to 24 CFR 135.40 as follows. Where at least 10% 
of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered contracts for 
building trades work arising in connection with housing rehabilitation, 
housing construction, and public construction or at least 3% of the 
total dollar amount of all other Section 3 covered contracts are not 
provided to Section 3 business concerns and/or do not result in the 
employment of Section 3 reSidents, the contractor, sub-contractor, 
developer or sub-recipient will be required to contribute the di1ference 
between 10% of the covered contract amount (3% for nonI 

construction related contracts) and the amount provided to Section 3 
business concerns and/or in the employment of Section 3 residents 
into the City's Section 3 Implementation Fund. The City will enforce 
this requirement. 

e) 	 Employment and Training: Within one hundred eighty (180) days of the 
effective date of this Agreement, the City shall: 

i. 	 Complete a review of the City's current full time newll hiring practices with 
respect to a Section 3 covered project to determine their compliance with 
Section 3. 

ii. 	 If current hiring practices do not comply with Section 3, then, subject to 
the City's obligations under the City's Affirmative Action Program, Civil 
Service Rules and current labor contracts and other applicable laws, 
regulations and contracts, within 180 days of the effective date of this 
Agreement: 

(a) Revise full-time new hiring practices to conform and comply with 
Section 3 requirements. 

(b) Include 	Section 3 residents as a preference group in the selection 
criteria for all full-time and part-time job vacancies. 

11 New hire means full-time employees for permanent, temporary or seasonal employment opportunities. see 24 CFR § 135.5. 
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iii. 	 Annually, review staffing and hiring needs of the City in connection with 
Section 3 covered projects including management and administrative jobs 
connected to Section 3 covered projects. Document any and all aspects of 
the hiring and employment policies that present barriers to complying with 
Section 3. Document all actions taken to overcome the barriers (120 days 
and on-going). 

f) 	 Annually: 

i. 	 Document the number of employees, newly-hired by the City or its covered 
contractors in connection with Section 3 covered projects, during the 
previous twelve month period; determine the number and percentage of 
Section 3 hires. Document all actions taken to ensure at least 30% of the 
newly-hired employees are Section 3 residents. 

ii. 	 At the end of 12 months after the effective date of this Agreement, if at 
least 30% of the new-hires were not Section 3 reSidents, determine and 
document whether the Section 3 Plan for recruiting and hiring was 
followed. If the Plan was followed, then, subject to the City's obligations 
under the City's Affirmative Action Program, Civil Service Rules, current 
labor contracts and other applicable laws, and regulations, review and 
revise the Plan to incorporate the following action: For publicly owned 
Section 3 covered projects constructed by the City enter into "first source" 
hiring agreements with organizations representing Section 3 reSidents; and 
for privately-owned Section 3 covered projects not constructed by the City, 
require the developer, covered contractors and subcontractors, and 
subrecipients to enter into "first source" hiring agreements with 
organizations representing Section 3 residents. 

g) 	If at the end of 24 months after the effective date of this Agreement, at least 
30% of the newly-hired were not Section 3 reSidents, determine and 
document whether the Section 3 Plan for training, recruiting and hiring was 
followed, changes/revisions are needed and strategies for addreSSing the 
barriers in the future are created. 

Reporting, Monitoring and Recordkeeping 

The City shall keep any and all records necessary to substantiate information 
regarding the reports described below for a period of four (4) years from the 
effective date of this Agreement unless indicated otherwise; and specifically, the City 
shall: 
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a) 	Ensure that form HUD 6000212 is submitted in an accurate and timely fashion 
as directed by HUD in accordance with 24 CFR § 135.90. This report shall be 
filed annually and as required by law. 

b) Submit semi-annual reports to HUD detailing all activity undertaken pursuant 
to this Agreement. The report will contain such specific information and be in 
such format as will be agreed upon by HUD and the City in advance of the 
City's first submission. 

c) 	 Every six months after the effective date of this Agreement, HUD will review 
the progress the City, its contractors and subcontractors have made in 
meeting the minimum numerical goals for employment and contracting. 13 

Thirty days in advance of each semi-annual meeting, the City will provide HUD 
with its semi-annual report. The report will identify any of the actions listed in 
the Agreement which the City believes have proved ineffective or impractical 
and will propose alternative proposals which would achieve the same ends. 

d) 	If after 12 months after the effective date of this Agreement, the numerical or 
"safe harbor" goals have not been met, the City and HUD will review this 
Agreement to determine what modifications will be made as needed. The 
agreed upon modifications shall take effect upon the execution of an 
amendment to this Agreement signed by both Parties. 

e) 	If the City meets its "safe harbor" goals, reporting requirements, grantee 
requirements, and other Section 3 regulatory requirements under this 
Agreement for two consecutive years, the City will be deemed to have 
satisfied the terms of this Agreement. However, the City will continue to make 
Section 3 progress reports to HUD on a semi-annual basis until the effective 
date of the Agreement has passed. 

Duration 

The duration of this Agreement shall be four (4) years from the effective date of this 
Agreement and this Agreement may be amended during such period of time if HUD: 

12 Use Appendix 3 

13 Each recipient and contractor and subcontractor (unless the contract or subcontract awards do not meet the threshold specified 
in § 135.3(a)(3» may demonstrate compliance with the requirements of this part by committing to award to Section 3 business 
concems: 
(1) At least 10 percent of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered contracts for building trades work for maintenance, repair, 
modernization or development of public or Indian housing, or for building trades work arising in connection with housing 
rehabilitation, housing construction and other public construction; and (2) At least three (3) percent of the total dollar amount of all 
other Section 3 covered contracts. 
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a) Determines that this Agreement must be revised, or expanded based on 
HUD's monitoring review of the City's performance under the Agreement or as 
a result of HUD's findings made following a subsequent compliance review of 
the City; and 

b) Notifies the City of this prior to the expiration date of the Agreement. 

Effect of Noncompliance with this Agreement 

a) Any act(s) or omission(s) by the City or its representatives, including its 
employees, which violate the terms of this Agreement may serve as grounds 
for HUD to impose debarment, suspension or limited denial of participation 
sanctions pursuant to 2 CFR 2424. HUD will provide the City with notice and a 
reasonable opportunity to cure any violations of the terms of this Agreement 
before employing the procedures and remedies contained in this section of the 
Agreement. 

b) Any act(s) or omission(s) that violate(s) the terms of this Agreement may 
serve as grounds for HUD to seek specific performance and/or enforce any or 
all of the provisions of this Agreement in federal court. 

c) 	 A continuing failure or refusal by the City to comply with the regulations in this 
part may result in the application of sanctions specified in the contract 
through which HUD assistance is provided, or the application of sanctions 
specified in the regulations governing the HUD program under which HUD 
financial assistance is provided. 

d) 	If, after 24 months following the effective date of this Agreement, HUD 
determines, as a result of the semi-annual reviews, that the City is unwilling 
or not able to carry out its HUD funded programs in compliance with the 
statutory and regulatory requirements of Section 3 and this Agreement, HUD 
may, at its option, require the City to engage the services of a consultant or 
contractor to perform said duties if HUD, in its sole discretion, determines 
that said services would be effective and practical. Such services, if required, 
shall be at the City's expense. The City will notify HUD of which consultant or 
contractor the City is considering and be provided an opportunity to comment 
on the selection(s). The City shall determine which consultant to use and the 
terms and conditions of the consultant's contract. 

e) 	If after the expiration of the Agreement, the City has met all of the terms of 
this Agreement, but has still failed to meet the "safe harbor" numerical 
requirements, HUD will, at its discretion, evaluate the City's compliance with 
Section 3 in accordance with 24 CFR Section 13S.30(d)(2). 
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Signatures 

These signatures attest to the approval and acceptance of this Voluntary Compliance 
Agreement: 

Paul, Minnesota: 

d/5/;U 
Christopher B. Coleman 
Mayor 

Date 

Assistant City Attorney 

;). -S-1..0(O 

Date 

On behalf of the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

,&~t; ~O/I 

Barbara M. Knox, Director, Date 
Region V, Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity Division 
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Appendix 1 will be a copy of the August 2009 letter to the City. 
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iu.s. DEPA.RTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN 
peY£LOP~ ..;)~a'·'''··~''. Midl'iest Regi()np.l Oflice,Region V {~ 111 1} Rl1pb H. Melena. Fedel'lll Building 


'f.,o,,,,~at 71 Welt JllCkso~ Boulev:tfd - Room 'lUl! 

Chlcag(),.lilinoi$ 60604-:!50'1 

om,~.r fair ~lUI~ Equ,ol oPl''1t'.'''1 

August 25,2009 

Honorable Chris Coleman 

Mayor of Saint Paul 

3900ty Hall 


.15 West Fourtn Street 
Saint Paul, MN 55102 

. Dear Mayor Coleman: 
. I 

SUBJECT: Section 3 Monitoring and Umited CompHance Review 
City of Saint Paul and the Housing ~nd Redevelopment AuthOrity (HRA) 

. Determination of NOri-COmPlIanCej . 

The U.S. Departl1lent ofHousing and Urban De elopment(HUD), Office of Fair Housing 
and Equal Opportunity/has completed a Hmited!on•.sitecory'lplianCe reviewofthe city of 
Saint Paul and the Saint Paul HOUSing aM RedeIJelopmentAuthority (HRA)l pursuant to 
Section 3 of the .Housing and Urban Developrhent Actor 19682, The purpose of the 
review was to determine whether, and to what extent, the city of Saint Paul and the 
HAA were administering HUD·funded programsjln compliance with the requirements of 
Section 3 as specified in 24 eFR § 135. Toe re'jew was limited to Section 3 contracting 
requirements. and therefore the. findlngscon;rcinedherein. do not address the city's 
compliance wl~h the Section 3 training andemPjoyment reqUIrements. . 

Toe purpose of Section .3 is to ensure tnat employment and other economic 
opportunities generated by HUD finanCial a~sistance for housing and community 
development programs shall, to the. greatest extent feaSible, be directed to low and 
very low·ln~me persons. Section 3 applies tq training. emplqyment, contracting and 
other economic opportunities arising in conne<fion with the expenditure pf community 
development assistance. Most H\.ID programs ~uire the grantee to sign a certification 
stating that It will comply with the requiremen~ of Section 3. 

Backgrguod: . f . . . . . . 
The city of Saint Paul Is a Community Development BloCk Grant. (CD8G) entitlement 
----------...--.- I 
I TIll! S•••• P••IIlOlUlng ~ p.<dA:"JopIl!<ll~ Aulll",,'y ,•• IoSt11, diltm«IWb!I' '~~11. IIIl>I<:lI IIId.".... _14.. t:OlII1II"Qa1 ...~ ~U.'H 
4M~q..lIbOA bth.1fof rII, Oil of SoW P.al. Thi: 5...1PoU1Cl]llIClm<i1 ftf¥O$., IU HIlA IlIltIddCommil:litllll:lL . 

'I~ usc "01.. 

-:~m.dW -~p_!.hIld.8I>" 

1) ---~--.--.-.- --;--- -_.- ..,--- ~-- --/". ---- --.-.-------.- " 
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community and a HOME program partic;ipating Jurisdiction. As such it is a recipient of 
Hl)D finandaJ assistance, Certain projects car~ed out by the dty utilizing. HUD funds 
constitute "Section 3 covered assistance" as defined in 24 CFR 13S,3,) Between 2006 
and 2008, the dty received Hub funds in the fOllowing amounts: 

20064 CDBG $8,211,748 HOME $2,291,390 
5 .. I 

2007 CDBG $8,12.5,675' HOME $2,277t962 . 

200S6 CDBG $7,941,344. HOME 
I 
$2,202,555 

On June 23, 2008, Fredrick Newell filed acompfaint alleging that the Saint Paul HRA 
f~ifed, or refUSed to comply with the requireme~ts of Section 3. On June 24, 2008, Mr; 
Newell filed a second complaint aifegingthat t~e city of Saint Paul failed or refused to 
comply with the requirements of Section 3. Gillen the functional relationship between 
the HRA and. the dty.. of Saint. ?aui, the twoIcomplaints were· consolloated for the 
purposes of investigation, 

During the course of the investigation, HUD staff discovered that the city of Saint Paul 
had not submitted annual reports (HUD Form 60002) of Section 3 activity as required 
by 24 CFR 135,~07 for the last several years. In light of Saint Paul's falJureto submit the 
annual reports as required,HUD determined to incorporate the .investigation of Mr. • 
New.ell's complaints Into a general review of thelcity of Saint Paul's compliance with the 
cOntracting provisions ofSection 3.13 I'. . 
During the week of May 19, l009/the followin.9 staff conducted a limited review of the 
City's compliance with Section 3, focusing on ccintractingopportunitles and obligations: 
Jaime Pedra~, Erika Finkler and Lerdine Darj:/en of the HUD r.,inneapolis Field Office, 
and Ratlq Munir of HUD's Section 3 Headquarters/office. Data and documents were 
examined In advance ·of. the on-site review•. Key staff were Interviewed and selected 
construction. project files were reviewed·on~site. Peter McCall, Assistant City Attorney, 
was present during the entrance and exit meetings and at all staff Interviews. ..,

InadditJon, materiqJSproducedpursuant to r federal lawsuit9 filed pyMr. Newell 
against the dty of Saint. Paul were. also reviewed. In his lawsuit,· Mr. Newell alleged the 
City failed to comply with Section 3 in numeroqs ways including (1) failure to award a 
suffident percentage of contracts to Section 3 business concerns; (2) failure to exerd5e. 

:tlCll1IWliff ~ .~. fOllowiIl!KUD.I1UII./l~¢,,,<:OII'_iI1 devtle(lJIII Ulil~~. Nt is IISI4JIJI III.i: rolJo,.in, pi9j"1# (il ~I 
~biliwlCIQ (~)b<Ill.Ima ~OI\ .... (iii) OllIe: publk <VIl'lN<liIm. I .. 

• So< h!Jp·II"""YI,huQ4ll"t.If"""'PAAbc<Jt/I'ud"'I!1l!l!$E1IJ!! 

's..hro"Il_.I",ii.m lollji:ll"""".lIootilwd"mUSQ7 

• s .. Do""!",,, ~!!l!S2"')ff,""c!!!llt1l\\l'!llzudgt<lbu4"!1li 

'2WI ....ipl....·~..w". dir<Clb """ IIUD fllAAei.l'''',.._UWi> "",joel'" lhe,"IW/tlIICo!.J ofll!i. ponlh.>II.~b!l\iI.I. II>< .....,,~ 
9....""Y 011 ......1 """" i • .,.., I'lulr!. ild with ·.04 .'tlJ .Ii<ll ,p(~r 01· u.. ,0\,11»""" SH1<1/11y <r~1 ....,...1. r... 1M Pl.IrpO>OO of 
4twnI1ulnllllK cIf«C1l>ellm .rs~). . 
· . 
• St.l~ CFIlI3S.141f), . 

• N4iliClIIUlIIICli9II Cr~)'Cf. II;'.The C'l of SII11II'o.'200'1 WI.,4Zl1!1ftD'lIfm~.) . . . 

. . "2 :j' .. 

-~-.--------.-- ------- -+---_ ~~C_~._ _. 
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oversight over a>ntractors hired with Secti()n J funds to assure 'thatthe contractors 

provide training, employment, and contr.aCting· 9Ppcntu!1itiest~·S~cti,()'1.3: perSons and 

busine,ss co~c.ems;.(3) •. f8jJure.t0f"~t.SectlOD3:sreporting;~.p~~~'!mt;s;(4)ifailure to 

seele out. ana·I~~.ntifySeqion l:buSlnes~ ~lJ.cerl'Js. ~b,9l:'t cpno:~t!iQg!2eP.9rtunjties; and. 

(5) failure:tofileform HUD;60002.Thelieare:~~ntiallY! t/le, ~ine'an~~ticins contained 

in' Mr. Newell's HtJPcomplaintTh~.la.\r'Jsl,jit ~a?' ~jtimately> disinissed .pn summary 

juqgll1ent because the'courtdetenninedthat$ection 3 dQes not'pi-ovide a right of 

private action. 


IntelYi~s: 

HUq,staff ",Section, 3.·· 
knowledge . v ........." ....... 


obligations't!1eret0 ' It; ;tpPIll;il!ep
with ..·SalntPaul's.. efforts :tl'l •.• irii'Ta:i<i.,.ri~i+il"'inl1ltir\ri 


businesses In'citY contract~ 

Department of Plan;';;"";' 

contraCtors;are· not· 

a>ntrads .' reference v 


stated that an exPlanation?'of: seCtion 

review'. various.rontract'compUancel issu~;Cll.Il 
that Section flsnot' .. . 
office works wIth P 
he has never· advised 

HUD requiresCDBG ehti,t1ernel1t 

theeffec.tlvenessof Se\:tion J . 

.	Form .60002 Wtthor, ..at> ~h~ ,,~att;le. 
Consolidated Annual· Performance:and'l:valui:luOI 
they ~re unaware Ofthls'require;miht 
S1Jbmltted a Section 3' re"olt t() I:tUD. 

Ronald Ro~rer:p Gran~A~mil1i$trator,statE1d ~that;,the\qtY·~oes sl:Iblllitthe required 
Contract and, ~ubcont:~~JActiVity Repor:t.~;· tNI?',~~!l~~!lY:U:Jh!~.,r.e~rt is submItted 
pursuant· tt:)' Exe.su~e·q~9,~r 2516 whicl1,req4ir~~Kthat;.al!if,~.g~ralt;age\lCjeSdevelop 
MinOrity BUSiness;' Dev!!lqp!Jlent· ?Ians. i=9r'!'?~ ~6 i~; ~~i9~~'to' provlde HUD with 
sufficient Inrorf.!l~tiontg,)yal~ate a.gr<;ryt~,~:~' ~o!l}1~n~~ i ;O~~~ 111~~ti99 its Minority 
BU5in~s; Erlt~r~r~',(t1BE) goals; \~1(Ff.FQm],:~SJP,.9~E!§~in~IHde~,~ry~ldJPJ'rePO~1)9'00 
Section 3 COlltra.ct activitY;:filing Form 2S1~:d~rfot,()pviate!theredpient's 'obligation 

~------,~ ~-.~ .--------'-_. -- --. --.--- 
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Fil~ rp.view: 

Based on information gathered before the 9n-sjte revlew,tive community development. 
projects were selected for review2, The prlects were selected because, per the 
redplent, they met the Section 3 funding. thre old~J. HUD staff reviewed the contract 
files maintained by the PEO and the Human -ghts and Equal Economic Opportunity 
Department The reviewers were examining th~ files-for documentaoonof compliance 
with Section 3. None of the contracts.e>0miped contained the required ·"Section 3 
clause," 14 Further, neither the pfojectbldsoliCj~tlons nor the offidal minutes of pre-bid 
·and pre-conSV\:Jction co!')ferences containedan1reference toSection 3 . . 

The HOME Repayment loan Agreements for !:{Ie Winnipeg Apartments, Booth Brown 
Manor and: for the Delancey/Selby. StoneARartments did contain a paragraph on 
Settlon 31 but It incorrectly stated. that partppationin thecjty's Vendor Outreac:h 
Program and.Affirmative Action Program are re~uired elements of Section 3 compliance. 
Nor did these documents include or reference Ple required Section 3 clause but rather 
recommended that sub-grantees utilize businesses located In, or owned by people livIng 
within, tlie seven county metropolitan area. I . . ' . . 
The R~uest for Qualifir.ationsfor the Delanfey/selby StooeApartments renovation 

11 n.. Fl:!!.'<tIS ~lwCd welt llocth ll_Manor, Coitlml:n. ApWII<lll:k r·. ylS<lbJ S;O!\f "~wnml>. OJ.y tIcln. ~ IIi...Wj....prt 
~. . 

.. 211 CFR l)f.3(&)O)(ii)(B) ~ I,\U".""'." of uu. put "I'!II)' \0 tlmlt<l!l'lCU aM .u~tMnctOl'J paformloS "QrL" Sectiou J _cttd 
v.oj.tet{u rot wlllch ~ 0"""'.1 ..1.... usill4J\'" ........ S200.000: 1l1li Ill<: "",In" or,.I><"'"IO<I __$100.000. . . . . .. t . . 
.. 2.1 Cl'R 13$.38. All S""lIll ll:llYlred t()llVlQl .,t'~\lil1H(l '1Hl1t11U Ij!p:iflt cbul. wrd<lloilu ~I<ItUllf'I S\!(tiGl13 rrl'PONibli!i#. 

~ -- -.. "'~. "~. ~ -"--' .... - ....... ;' ....... __ ~_ ._ •• --....... c 
 ,,., . -.". -'-'. --_.<_ .... 
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project did state that Section 3 requirements apply. However, the Acknowledgment Qf 
men 

complianceRe.c. e.ipt ..Of...withCo Section.•.e DOI':!J3. . ts for this PI'oject did not identify any. subsequent.... mOlian.c 

I~stjmQOY Qr-Other Evidence:· 
. 
HUD staff reviewed materials developed pursuant to Mr. Newell's federal civil suit 
againsUhecity of SainUavl. This material is qenerally consiStent with the information 
developed during the on-site ce>mpliancerevief'" Robert Hammer, Direcro.r of Finance 
and Administrative· Services. for· the city of Sai9t Paul, provided a sworn .affrdavit filed 
with the United States District CoUrt in which ~e stated that the city of Saint Paul had 
never Instituted, no... had in place at the timet a Section 3 certification and tracking 
program. Further, Mr~Hammer affirmed that\thecity had never submitted a Form 
60002 to HUD nor was he familiar with a reQUiflment to do 50.

15 
. . 

Findings and Conclusions: 

The city of Saint Paul (including the Saint Pa.ul HRA) [s not in compliance with. the 
requirementS of the Section 3. It cannot do<::um~nt compliance with the "greatest extent 
feasible" ~q1Jirement of Section. 3 bydemonstratin~ that its contractingactMtles meet 
the numerical.goals asset forth in the regulation.' Nor has it Implemented any of the 
specific .activities defined by the regulation as Irecipient responsibilities. There are no 
procedures In place to; 1) notify Section .lresidents about traIning. and employment 
opportunities ~enerated by Section. 3 covere'dassistance and Section 3 business 
opportunitfes;l· 2) notify potential eontractorslaooutthe Section 3 requirements and. 
ensure their compliance and. their subcontractors-:. compliance with Section ;3 
requirements;18 3) incorporate .theS~ctlorl 3 dause!9 in aU solicitations ancl 
contractsi,20 4) facilitate the training and~mployrpent of SectIon 3 resident:s:and the 
award of contracts to Section 3 bUSiness conceins;21 Or 5) doc.ument the actions taken 
to comply with the Section 3 requirements, the 1results of the actions and impedlmentsl 

If any.12 Furthermore, the recipient has not ~ubmitteq the Form 60002 annually as 
required by the regulations. 

IJs~ Aff'.da~t0( Rob"" HlII'IWft 401C11 OeIQb!:, 3. ~006, 


\·S...24 CFl\ t 1l;'30 


" $.. :\4 C!iI!. f 135.32(l) 

U $.. 24 CPR.' US.31(b) 


IV .St. Z4 CI'!l t m.~& 


I» StL , CPR. I)U~b) 


.1 Sec 24 CFa f 13S.3~t} 


U ~t 'A C~ i U!3Ue} 


V 
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, , 

The city asserts that notvv!tbstancnng its inaijility to document compliance with the 

"greatest extent feasible" requirement:. to implement any of its defined program 

responslbilitles, or to file Form 60002 anhually, it Cldministl:!rs its communIty 

development programs In compliance With Se~ion 3 requirements~ The city offers in 

support of this assertion the fact that HUO:s Office of Community Planning and 

Devel.opment (CPD) reVie.ws i.ts com.munity deY.'110pment a.c.tivities annually to determine 

compliance with applicable laws and regulation; and that the City routinely receives high 

rating from.· CPO. However, Section 3 complia~ce is not an element of a CPO annuaJ 

review, Alth6ugllHUD may periodically conquct Section 3 compUancereviews of 

selected recipients, it relies primarily on ar~jpient'ssetf-certjflcatiOR in this regard. 

Absent rea,S9n to believe to the contrary, HUD 'accepts 11 recipient's self-certification as 

sufficient evidence- that the recipient is carfying out its community development 

activities in compUance with Section 3, The Sec!tion 3 self:-eertification ofcornpliance is 

IncJ\J.ded In every apprication for new or continutctHUD ~vndin9. ,.. 


Given this finding or noncompliance, the Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal 
. Opportunity wll! take informal steps to brind this matter to a voluntary and just 
resolution in accordance with 24 CFR 135.7Q(f)(1)Y Wbere attempts to informally 

. resolve this issue fail, tne AssIstant' SecretaryWiu impose a resolution. AAyresolutlon 
imposed by the Assistant Secretary wiil be In actordance withthe'regulations governing 
the particular HUD program(s) In question and jnay result In the imposition of program 
sanct:ions if appropriate. Please be advised t~at you have the right to appeal this 
decision with .fit'teen (15) days of the receif.?t of this notification by requesting a , , 
reconsideration of this actloll. Any request (or reconsid.eration should specifY the 
reasons why this decisionshovld be reconSl~ered. Your request should be mailed 
directly to the Assistant Secretary for F1ilirHOUSirg and Equal Opportunity at: 

U.S. Department ofHovslng and Urban D.evelopment 
Office of fair Housing and!Equal Opportunity 

451 Seventh St~eet, SW 
. Suite 51.00 W~Shin9"t D.C. 20410 . .. 

If an appei:llis not submitted during the indicatf~ time above, you will·be contacted· by 

a staff person to begin the voluntary resolution rrocess. If you have any questions· . 


I 
"........,....._...,-..~..,..-.-l-.-...-.."" ,,.~'" '-'., ,,..

<II< .~li~.. " .. i .... "'V~r~ •• illc..i/lul "."",I~t lb. AAI-1.. '.....rt 11.. d._ctd I'H'J~lY.'1M JIIItlU' iu C!; ......n... ckwltd
lbovt. . . . . 

6· .'.. 

-~---~..-..-.,;..- -_·1-- ., ':., .... --~- ;01'_.._______ 
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regarding any aspect of this review, please contact Ms. Jaime Pedraza at 612·370-3000 
ext 2130. Thank you for your cooperation. I 

1incerelYI , 

~~~ 
Barbara M. Knox, Direttor 
9ffice Fair Housing &. Equal Opportunity 
~egion V 

cc; Cecile Sedor, PED 
Robert Hammer, AdmInistrative Team Le,'der 
Fredrick Newell 
Dexter sidney, Field Office Director I 
Michele Smith, CPO Director 
Jaime D. Pedraza, FHEO Director 

! 
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Appendix 2 

§ 135.38 Section 3 Clause. 

All Section 3 covered contracts shall include the following clause (referred to as the 

Section 3 clause): 

a) The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of 

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 

U.S.c. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment 

and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted 

projects covered by Section 3, shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to 

low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD 

assistance for housing. 

b) The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 

135, which implement Section 3. As evidenced' by their execution of this contract, 

the parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other 

impediment that would prevent them from complying with the part 135 regulations. 

c) The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of 

workers with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other 

understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' 

representative of the contractor's commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will 

post copies of the notice in conspicuous places at the work site where both 

employees and applicants for training and employment positions can see the notice. 

The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set forth minimum number 

and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training positions, 

the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 

applications for each of the positions; and the antiCipated date the work shall begin. 
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d) The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject 

to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR part 135, and agrees to take appropriate 

action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 

clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 

CFR part 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the 

contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in 

violation of the regulations in 24 CFR part 135. 

e) The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training 

positions, that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is 

executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR 

part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to 

circumvent the contractor's obligations under 24 CFR part 135. 

f) Noncompliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR part 135 may result in sanctions, 

termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future 

HUD assisted contracts. 

g) With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian 

housing assistance, section 7(b) of the Indian Self· Determination and Education 

Assistance Act (25 U.S.C. 450e) also applies to the work to be performed under this 

contract. Section 7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference 

and opportunities for training and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) 

preference in the award of contracts and subcontracts shall be given to Indian 

organizations and Indian·owned Economic Enterprises. Parties to this contract that 

are subject to the provisions of Section 3 and section 7(b) agree to comply with 

Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in derogation of compliance with 

section 7(b). 
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